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CHAIR WIENER: 
The first bill we will hear today is Senate Bill (S.B.) 4. 
 
SENATE BILL 4: Requires the establishment of a system for the electronic 

submission of applications for Medicaid and the Children's Health 
Insurance Program. (BDR 38-210) 
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN SHEILA LESLIE (Assembly District No. 27): 
I am the Chair of the interim Legislative Committee on Health Care (LCHC). 
Senate Bill 4 emerged from the LCHC; however, you have seen this bill before 
because it was also a recommendation from the previous interim. Basically, it 
requires the establishment of electronic submission of applications for Medicaid 
and our State Children’s Health Insurance Program (SCHIP). 
 
I do not want to go into a lot of testimony about the bill since you have heard it 
before. The reason it did not get into law the last time was because of the large 
fiscal note, but during the LCHC meetings we felt so strongly about it, even 
knowing our fiscal position, we decided to include this recommendation again. 
Though I am sure you have seen a copy of our brand-new report, the rationale 
behind this is on page 4. 
 
Considering our high rate of uninsured people in this state, LCHC felt that one 
of the best ways to address the issue of the uninsured was to fill in the building 
blocks of the health insurance programs that we do have, the primary ones 
being Medicaid and SCHIP. Until we get the people who are eligible and qualify 
on those programs, we cannot hope to really impact our uninsured. That is the 
impetus behind this bill. We think it is time Nevada came into the technological 
age to have people able to apply for these programs online.  
 
Our committee came up with a fiscal note of $159,000. During the budget 
overview, we heard that the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services has in 
its budget a technology improvement plan that will pretty much take care of the 
fiscal note, if we approve it, and it is in the budget already in the Governor’s 
recommendation. Our fiscal staff reviewed this today to let me know if there 
would be any impact. I showed these numbers to the division administrator, and 
he agreed that the cost was only going to be about $11,800 per year. Of that, 
only $4,147 is General Fund. We should be able to find that money. With this 
Committee’s assistance, I would urge approval of this bill. 
 
SENATOR STEVEN A. HORSFORD (Clark County Senatorial District No. 4): 
I would like to expound a little bit on some of the policy reasons why this 
legislation is important. While the health-care committees have recommended 
this in the past, we have lost out because of our focusing so much on the cost 
that we lose sight of how we can make government work better and smarter for 
the people of Nevada. There are more than 115,000 children in Nevada who are 
uninsured, 17 percent, which is approximately 1 in every 6 children in our State, 
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while 51,485 children are uninsured and living in poverty, which is 37 percent 
of children. According to a report from Families USA, the vast majority of 
uninsured children in Nevada come from families where at least one parent 
works. As we know, with the unemployment rate where it is, that figure is 
likely to change.  
 
More than two-thirds of uninsured children, 67.9 percent, in Nevada live in 
households where at least one family member works full time, year-round. 
Another 57.5 percent of Nevada’s uninsured children come from low-income 
families at or below the poverty level of $35,200 for a family of three. 
 
Under the Nevada Check-Up Program and Medicaid, these programs were 
established to address these needs. While it has allowed more children to obtain 
health insurance, barriers have prevented many eligible children from enrolling 
and staying enrolled into Medicaid and/or Nevada Check-Up. Analysts estimate 
that about seven out of ten uninsured children are eligible for coverage under 
Medicaid or SCHIP. The failure of thousands of eligible children who remain 
without coverage is a serious cause of concern because uninsured children face 
significant obstacles to receiving health care. 
 
In a national study comparing Medicaid-eligible, uninsured children to 
Medicaid-enrolled children with the same health status, family income and other 
characteristics, the following research was found: Uninsured children were 
almost three times as likely to have unmet health needs during the year, and 
were more than four times as likely to delay health care due to cost. Nearly 
25 percent of the uninsured children lacked a regular source of health care 
compared to 6 percent among Medicaid-enrolled children. Out-of-pocket medical 
expenses were also higher for families of uninsured children. Almost 30 percent 
of uninsured children had medical costs exceeding $500 per year, while 
13 percent of Medicaid-enrolled children spent this much. 
 
Clearly, the opportunity that this bill allows for is to break down the barriers, to 
cover more children and to make access to coverage more available to our 
neediest population. The online enrollment works. Needy children are not 
enrolled. Barriers exist despite efforts by members of this Committee to expand 
outreach and marketing.  
 
Many of those programs have been cut from the budget and so again we need 
to find new and innovative ways to make families aware of this opportunity. 



Senate Committee on Health and Education 
February 11, 2009 
Page 5 
 
Online enrollment is one step in creating a more simplified and streamlined 
application process. It refers to a person’s ability to apply for Medicaid or SCHIP 
by a specific Internet Website, which is helpful. The applicant fills in and 
transmits information that becomes the basis for an electronic record that exists 
for the duration of his or her family’s enrollment in Medicaid or SCHIP. This is a 
newly emerging issue because, with the Governor’s proposal to cap the number 
of children at 25,000, we have heard of instances where children have actually 
fallen off the rolls at a given period, only to be eligible to come back and have to 
start the process all over again.  
 
We learned that there were 3,000 applications waiting to be processed partly 
because of a lack of staffing and proper infrastructure to effectively process the 
applications in another way. I, along with Assemblywoman Leslie and many 
others, believe this is just too important a policy. If there is a fiscal cost that 
cannot be absorbed through the budget process, I believe this should be done. It 
is the right thing to do for our children, and it is the only way that we are going 
to begin to address the uninsured issues that continue to plague our State. 
 
In conclusion, at least 12 states offer a pilot online-enrollment program, 
statewide, for Medicaid and/or SCHIP applicants. We need to put Nevada on 
that list. 
 
CHAIR WIENER:  
I am curious about the logistics to maximize the online portion because of these 
needy populations. Many of these families do not have computers, so are there 
centers or locations where they can go to register, and how will they be 
educated about that process? 
 
SENATOR HORSFORD: 
Obviously, the family resource centers throughout the State are the first point of 
contact that would allow families, particularly those who qualify, to be able to 
connect. There are also a number of nonprofit organizations that do this work. 
Another passion of mine is the Earned Income Tax Credit program which also is 
primarily Web-based and requires assistance. We have proven that just through 
information awareness, one can get people who are not typically able to access 
the computer to find avenues to do that in their community. It is something that 
employers require more and more just to be able to apply for jobs.  
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I think that this whole myth, or perception, that because someone is low-income 
they do not have access to computers, while a legitimate concern, is not a 
barrier that we should not open up to as an avenue. For some people it is their 
only way to get the information, as unfortunately we are not able to put the 
resources into other mechanisms that can be just as effective. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
You will hear some testimony from the Welfare Division that will tell you why 
they have an electronic application technology program in their budget, so 
people can also apply for Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 
online. What I found interesting in conversation with Mike Willden was learning 
that one of the reasons our Nevada Check-Up applications have been lower than 
we projected is because of the economy, in that many of those children are 
moving to Medicaid. They are now eligible because of family circumstance for 
Medicaid. 
 
We have a lot of fluidity right now between these public programs. The 
electronic application, as I understand it, is that we will be able to use the 
electronic application for all of the State, but at least the major State public 
assistance programs. The idea that someone can sit down in a family resource 
center, in a nonprofit agency, or if they happen to be in a state welfare office, 
or visiting a county welfare office, all of those places will have the online 
application, to enter data, being able to update one’s address—it will be a much 
more efficient way to match up our citizens who need the services with the 
services that we offer. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
I will regress a little. There is a timeline and historical aspect to the point where 
we are today. When I first got here, “No Match” was the catchall mandate from 
the federal government to begin to collect and integrate this information 
electronically. Of course there were a lot of problems with No Match and we 
were threatened that if we did not come under compliance, the State was going 
to have to pay huge sums of money for out-of-compliance issues. I am sure 
Mike Willden remembers that.  
 
We were able to adjust that, and then as we progressed through this time it 
came to our attention that we could do a lot better with electronic benefit 
transfer for prescription drugs, etc. It took us a while to finally convince some 
of our colleagues at that time that this was going to be beneficial and 
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cost-saving, streamlining the process and eliminating problems. We finally got 
that going, then moved in the progression of child welfare, which we mentioned 
yesterday, a bifurcated system in trying to come up with technology that 
benefited not only federal but both counties and the Division of Child and Family 
Services (DCFS), making sure these children received services that were 
necessary.  
 
This ultimately brings us to this point where, for those who are going to receive 
social services, whether it is TANF or Medicaid, Nevada Check-Up or any other 
social program at the county level, it only makes sense that there is a one-stop 
shop; a seamless progression that would take the information and direct those 
individuals to the necessary services that would properly meet their needs. 
 
To answer your question, the eligibility workers at the welfare office and also 
some of our local community health organizations, such as Health Access 
Washoe County (HAWC), have indicated to us quite literally that if we were able 
to take applications online, we could determine what services would be eligible. 
They have petitioned heavily for a seamless, integrated, one-stop electronic 
application system.  
 
The costs have always been an issue. Our economy has taken a downturn, and 
the State is looking for ways to save money. By attrition we are probably going 
to lose some State employees and full-time employees that work in the 
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). If we do not replace them, 
the result would be cost-neutral because of the technology and the seamless 
system that we are going to create throughout the State. In the long run, I think 
the State is going to benefit wholly and those that need the services will be able 
to access those services a lot quicker. I think this is going to save the taxpayers 
a great deal of money as well. This only makes sense. 
 
From what we hear about the stimulus package, if they increase the allocation 
of funds to Medicaid and SCHIP and do not do something different, we will be 
way behind the curve.  
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
My suggestion is specifically to section 2 of the bill, to take the money from the 
unclaimed property account. Now that we know that the Division of Welfare 
has most of the money in their budget, my suggestion would be to get rid of 
section 2 of S.B. 4.  
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ROMAINE GILLILAND (Administrator, Division of Welfare and Supportive Services, 
 Department of Health and Human Services): 
The Committee has been given a copy of my written testimony regarding 
S.B. 4 (Exhibit C). 
 
CHARLES DUARTE (Administrator, Division of Health Care Financing and Policy, 

Department of Health and Human Services): 
Specifically, for Nevada Check-Up, my division is responsible for application 
adjudications determination of eligibility, and we think this will have significant 
benefits for us. Although we have a Web-based application already in use, we 
essentially have to take that Web-based application that we receive from our 
recipient and enter it into our database manually. We believe this application 
interface that we have developed with welfare will allow us to be able to 
download into our database and allow an eligibility worker to immediately start 
processing it. There is one immediate benefit that we see that is actually 
contributing to the backlog in cases that we are reviewing right now for 
eligibility to review applications for enrollment. We are getting a larger and 
larger number of duplicate applications because parents are very concerned as 
to whether or not their application is pending, and rather than call they 
oftentimes just submit a new application. We know that a significant portion of 
those pending reviews we have in our offices are duplicates, and we believe this 
will assist in improving operations and eliminating or reducing the number of 
duplicate applications that we have to review. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
The only question I have will be the funding. It has been indicated that you will 
use technology money that you already have. Are you sure you still have that 
technology money and that it has not been reverted? The concern I have is 
knowing that you actually have the money and that you are able to do this with 
it. I do not know if you have gone through your whole budget with the Senate 
Committee on Finance and the Assembly Committee on Ways and Means yet, 
but to me, that would be the issue before we proceed forward. I do not want to 
find out that you did not get all the technology money, or you do not have the 
technology money or there is an issue and then we have an unfunded mandate. 
 
MICHAEL J. WILLDEN (Director, Department of Health and Human Services): 
In the Executive Budget there are two technology-improvement requests within 
DHHS; one in Mr. Duarte’s shop which is a take-over of the Medicaid 
Management Information System (MMIS) and the second is the one that 
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Mr. Gilliland just described, about a $10.5 million project that is included in the 
Executive Budget to do the Web-based application. It does not have anything to 
do with reverted money and fiscal year (FY) 2009 cuts we have been doing. We 
have budgeted this for FY 2010 and FY 2011. It is in the Executive Budget and 
has been presented in early hearings to the money committee, so that money is 
there. The only “gap” in the technology request that we have budgeted is the 
roughly $20,000 to $25,000 interface over the biennium with Mr. Duarte’s 
Check-Up Program. We need to tweak that and this should be fully funded.  
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
I know we are not the Finance Committee, but I appreciate your comments. 
Once you put this up, and once you have used that money, what will be the 
cost to the State from there on? 
 
MR. WILLDEN: 
This is a budget saver. This is a huge benefit to the applicants and it will save 
them time. The real tipping point for the DHHS this biennium is the caseload 
growth cycle that we are in right now. We will have to hire hundreds of 
eligibility workers to process the volume of applications and redeterminations 
that we get. Unless we automate that function, we are going to be asking for 
many, many workers, and I think this thing is projected to save around 
$13 million to $15 million per year when you calculate the number of new 
full-time employees that we will have to hire to keep up with the application 
growth rate versus automating it. We have a hump to get over, but then we 
save money.  
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
Once you have gotten over the first hurdle, which is the first two years, what is 
the cost going to be and how is that going to be absorbed? Every time we put 
one of these together, we come back and do not have money for it. We have to 
find another revenue stream to pay for what we are doing. I understand the 
savings, but there is a cost, and I want to know if that has been looked at. 
 
MR. WILLDEN: 
It has been. Mr. Gilliland can give you what we call the “third, fourth, fifth and 
beyond operating costs.” I did not bring that with me. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
If you would submit that to us later, that is fine.  
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JAN GILBERT (Northern Nevada Coordinator, Progressive Leadership Alliance of 

Nevada): 
We are in support of this bill. We are pleased to see it finally come to fruition. 
We met with the Welfare director, but savings could be even more, according to 
his plotting out the efficiencies of this, which are enormous. The family resource 
centers have people coming right to their doors to ask for a multitude of help to 
get them self-sufficient. This kind of thing can save so much time for the actual 
state worker who has to then process all the papers; they will not be filling in all 
the blanks, they will be doing the final authorization check-in. I think it is 
tremendous for our State and it is going to help a lot of families and move them 
faster into a better life. I urge your support. 
 
PATRICIA DURBIN (Executive Director, Great Basin Primary Care Association): 
A copy of my written testimony has been given to the Committee Secretary 
(Exhibit D). As an addendum, what has been already said is everything I had 
planned on telling you. This is a wonderful process, so I will cut it short and just 
add that when you were asking about how this will get out to people, the actual 
workers in the community health centers and the tribal clinics across the State 
can use this application in-house and, to be honest with you, I see a vision of 
deputizing some eligibility workers right here in our health centers. This will 
greatly assist our health centers, and I think there is potential for further steps 
of how this can be used to serve most people. The most important thing is that 
if we cut staff in the welfare office who are doing eligibility work, or take 
advantage of the savings to the extent that it just becomes piled up in some 
server somewhere, certainly that would be against what we are all trying to 
accomplish. I think we should all keep in mind what is important is the online 
application leads to the patients being served sooner. 
 
SABRA SMITH-NEWBY (Director, Department of Administrative Services, Clark 

County): 
Clark County Social Services assists clients with both applications for Medicaid 
and for the Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP). If implemented, this 
program would provide for much more ease and efficiency. As advocates for our 
clients, we support this enhancement to the process, which ideally improves the 
process but also improves access to these services that are necessary in these 
economic times. 
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ERIN MCMULLEN (Hospital Corporation of America; Sunrise Health Care): 
I am in support of S.B. 4. As has already been stated, there are a large number 
of individuals in this State who are eligible for Medicaid but remain uncovered. 
As a result, they go to emergency rooms for their medical care and miss out on 
preventive care, and also follow-up care. Health care is more costly as a result. 
We believe this bill would facilitate getting health-care coverage for many 
individuals by assisting them in getting covered by the Medicaid program. 
 
JESSE WADHAMS (Nevada Hospital Association): 
We are simply proud to support this bill as written. 
 
JON SASSER (Washoe Legal Services; Washoe County Senior Law Project; 

Advocacy Nevada Covering Kids and Families Coalition; Vice-Chair of 
Nevada Health Care Reform Project): 

I am in support of S.B. 4. 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
Since there are no further comments from the public or from the Committee, 
I will close the hearing on S.B 4, and we will move on to S.B. 24. 
 
SENATE BILL 24: Requires the Director of the Department of Health and Human 

Services to include in the State Plan for Medicaid a program to provide 
preliminary determinations of eligibility for certain assistance. (BDR 38-
450) 

 
GEORGE STEVENS (Chief Financial Officer, Clark County, Department of Finance; 
 Chief Financial Officer, University Medical Center): 
I would like to explain a little bit about why the Clark County Board of 
Commissioners felt strongly enough about this issue to bring this forth in terms 
of the bill. There was a similar bill last Session that did not pass. Essentially, as 
we were providing information to the commissioners as we regularly do on the 
financial condition of University Medical Center (UMC), we had a dialogue about 
a committee that has formed at UMC and meets every two weeks. The principal 
mission of this committee, a multidisciplinary committee of UMC staff, is to look 
at an extensive list of UMC patients who are pending placement in nursing 
homes. These are generally patients who have been in UMC for extended 
periods of time. I have provided the Committee with a one-page sheet that 
provides some statistics from the list of patients who were before the UMC 
committee just as recently as January 30, 2009 (Exhibit E).  

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/SB/SB24.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Senate/HR/SHR107E.pdf�


Senate Committee on Health and Education 
February 11, 2009 
Page 12 
 
It is interesting to note that at this particular meeting there were 17 patients. 
Those 17 patients had been in UMC for a total number of 1,500 patient days 
for 17 patients. The average length of stay of close to 90 days per individual is 
compared to what is typically an average length of stay for a patient at UMC, 
slightly over 5 days. The longest length of stay of any of these patients is 
280 days. This particular patient is still in UMC and probably will be for 
a considerable period of time. The total charges for this group of 17 patients 
during that period of time is close to $9 million and the cost of care provided to 
these 17 patients is $3.9 million, or an average of $230,000 per patient. At any 
given point in time, there are typically about 20 of these patients at UMC, 
365 days a year, so the annualized cost of the care provided to these patients 
over the course of the year is in excess of $16 million.  
 
When that was presented to the commissioners, they were obviously very 
concerned about the fact that just a very small percentage of the population at 
UMC was consuming so much of the resources. The concern has been raised, 
“What can we do to get these patients out of the hospital sooner?” That was 
the justification for our resubmitting this bill for your consideration at this 
Session.  
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
Looking at the numbers that you have provided, you did mention nursing home 
care. You stated the usual average stay being five days. Is that five days 
indicative of the average patient? Of 17 patients that you refer to, the average 
length of stay is 90 days. Were they in a state-of-need level, that they needed 
this length of time because of the physical maladies that they were suffering 
from? I get an average of 5 days, and comparing that to 90 days I do not know 
what level of care the people needed who are in this family of 17 patients. 
 
MR. STEVENS: 
We intend to get into that in a little bit more detail. I will give you some 
examples, but essentially by the time the patients get onto this list they are past 
the point of being in acute status. The only thing keeping them in UMC is lack 
of a pay source to be moved to a nursing home.  
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
Having a mother who is in a care facility in Minnesota, this really hits home for 
me. The costs are incredible; she has Alzheimer’s and dementia. The one area 
that I found very interesting, talking to some of the other hospitals, was the 
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cost of the medication for some of the patients who had unique circumstances, 
certain medications or treatments that are $1,000 a day. I was shocked at the 
numbers. Is that averaged in here as well? 
 
MR. STEVENS:  
Yes. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
Overall, did you combine everyone together? 
 
MR. STEVENS: 
This represents the average cost of a patient day. Some of the patients would 
obviously be much more expensive, some obviously somewhat less expensive.  
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
That is what I would like to see, instead of the average. There can be an 
average of what you normally get and then you have the extreme. That would 
be very helpful to have that laid out. I understand why you did it that way, but I 
think to really get the impact of what one could cost, of how that really affects 
the overall care and costs for everybody, to do it that way. If that is feasible, 
I do not know if you can or not, but to me I think it would really hit a lot harder 
than an average. 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
I would be curious as well, if I may, Senator Cegavske. Piggybacking to the 
question about comparing average stays, five days, and that by the time these 
patients get on this list they are already beyond the acute stage. Could you also 
provide the Committee, even with these 17, or a more comprehensive number 
of patients? Maybe to address Senator Cegavske’s concern as well as mine, 
I can handle the average part if I understand this category of patient, at what 
point they get beyond the acute care, where they need the hospital care, so 
that I can understand why it goes up to 90 days. If the average patient stay is 
5 days for this particular population or if it is 12 days and we are looking at 
nearly 90 days, that would be very helpful. The average stay for five days does 
not help if we do not talk about this patient population.  
 
VIRGINIA CARR (Director of Eligibility Services, University Medical Center): 
My role is to assist uninsured claims with identifying assistance for the hospital 
bills and ongoing health-care needs. As part of the presumptive eligibility bill, 
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I think we need to clarify the population that we are talking about. This is 
a limited population of folks that have been determined by a physician to be 
disabled. They also have an income of under $694 a month. It is a very finite 
group of folks.  
 
The Supplemental Security Income (SSI) approval process is so important 
because Medicaid is approved based on the SSI approval. Until then, they 
remain pending on Medicaid status.  
 
The second point that I wanted to briefly discuss before we talk about our 
individual patients, because I think that is what you are very interested in 
hearing, is specifically some humanistic perceptions of patients that we actually 
have in our hospital. There is an ease of implementation in this process. 
Currently, the infrastructure is in place, through the Nevada Medicaid office 
decision process, that makes medical decisions for disability cases without 
a social security component. I think we have an opportunity there to make a 
decision about these on a preliminary basis as part of that process.  
 
Jeri White wants to spend a few moments talking about some of the continuum 
of care that you have mentioned, and I think that will help explain some of our 
clients. 
 
JERI WHITE (Director of Social Services, University Medical Center): 
My department is responsible for the discharging of patients who are no longer 
acute and are medically ready to be transitioned to a lower level of care from 
the hospital. Patients with approved Medicaid are able to be transitioned to 
a normal continuum of care. For example, a patient admitted to the hospital due 
to a motor-vehicle accident and placed on a ventilator for respiratory failure 
would normally be transitioned to a lower level of care, which we call long-term 
acute care, if they were Medicaid approved. A patient who suffers from a stroke 
and is hospitalized would normally transition to a rehabilitation facility for 
intensive therapy if they have an approved paying source or were Medicaid 
approved. Patients with dementia or altered mental status who are admitted to 
the hospital would be transitioned, when medically ready, to a nursing home or 
skilled nursing facility once Medicaid approved. 
 
As an institution, we cannot force a for-profit facility to accept 
a Medicaid-pending patient; therefore, patients remain at our hospital and other 
hospitals unnecessarily. Currently, we are holding an average of 20 patients 
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a day who are awaiting a pay source in order to be transitioned to the 
appropriate level of care. Expediting patients throughout the continuum, to the 
next level of care, is the right thing to do for the patients and to the hospital. 
Patients and families need to feel a sense of progress, both physically and 
emotionally. Patients who remain hospitalized unnecessarily are at risk for 
infection and deterioration of function. In addition, not discharging patients who 
are non-acute prevents acute patients in the emergency department from being 
admitted to the hospital without delays. We have included some patient 
examples in your handout (Exhibit F). 
 
Patient A was admitted to UMC with cardiac problems on September 6, 2007. 
That was the same day he happened to be discharged from another hospital. 
The patient was homeless and had no family. He was ready for a skilled nursing 
facility in November, so he was acute from September 6 to November 6, 2007; 
however, he remained at UMC until January 27, 2008, awaiting Medicaid 
approval. He had 120 days as a non-acute patient at UMC. 
 
Patient B was a pending-Medicaid patient also. He was admitted to UMC on 
January 18, 2008, with infections, contusions and altered mental status. He 
was acute for 25 days and remained at UMC as a non-acute patient for an 
additional 63 days until he was well enough to be discharged back to the 
shelter. He had numerous readmissions and was finally Medicaid approved 
one year later. Now that he is approved, should he return to our facility or any 
other facility, he would be allowed to be transitioned to a lower level of care in 
a timely manner. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
I do not know if the Health Division is going to testify on this bill. It is not that 
I am not in support of SSI with presumptive eligibility as long as there are some 
cost savings on the back end of it, dealing with Medicaid patients. My 
understanding after reading the bill, and actually looking at the fiscal note, was 
that the bill was going to be the mechanism to put the policy in place once the 
funding became available. I am not sure if that is your intent, or is your intent to 
buy up the whole enchilada and hopefully get the funding to deal with the 
presumptive eligibility? Can you enlighten me as to what you are attempting to 
do? 
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MS. CARR: 
We would like to move forward with this bill because we believe if we can 
reduce 50 percent of those non-acute days, which are paid by the Medicaid 
system once the patient is approved, at a higher rate than it is paid at the 
nursing home, we do identify some cost savings. In 2007, there were 
10,594 administrative days paid by the State at a rate of $250 per day. The 
average cost for a nursing home stay at the Medicaid rate is $164, at that time, 
an $86 savings. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
Yes, I am familiar with length of stay and cost, but my question is the first year 
of the next biennium, or the next biennium of the fiscal year, there is a fiscal 
note of close to $55 million. Then, the following year there is a fiscal note of 
almost $6 million, for a total cost or savings of about $11 million for the total 
biennium. The question has always been, “How do we take care of the up-front 
cost?” Maybe you have taken that under consideration, but my understanding 
was that the bill was basically to set the procedure, or the policy, in place so 
that when the Health Division was able we could go back to Finance and say, 
“Okay, the policy is in place, now we just need the appropriations to take care 
of these individuals.” 
 
MS. CARR: 
I am not familiar with what the intent was from that point except that we do 
need the bill to go forward at some point, maybe on a very restrictive level. 
Using the Nevada Medicaid office to restrict some of those approvals, possibly, 
maybe we need to say that the client must have a recent hospital admission, 
that might be an option.  
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
We need Mike Willden to come back and explain to us the potentials of the 
stimulus package. I know there are some provisions within the stimulus package 
that are going to enhance, or provide for enhancement, in Medicaid. I am not 
sure if those enhancements are earmarked for certain programs within Medicaid. 
Maybe Mr. Duarte might expound on what is going on and how much money 
the State expects to receive, if it receives any money, and if it can be used with 
some discretionary funds to apply for presumptive eligibility. If it can, how much 
of those funds will be available, and how much of the funds will cover the cost 
of what you are asking? 
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MS. CARR: 
I think that is absolutely true. If we are going to take a time to pay our past 
bills, which is what we are paying today, 2007 Medicaid SSI claims, we would 
have the current claims going forward. It seems like this may be the opportune 
time, possibly based on those other factors, to take that one-time position so 
that we can move forward and save money going forward. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
In the last special session, we took away the increase in reimbursement levels 
for hospitals, so taking all that into consideration, the “SSI” is at least trying to 
get the reimbursement levels up to a level where hospitals can break even or 
stay a little below even. This might be a bigger nut to crack than we are really 
able to do. Then, it is matter of priorities; which one comes first, presumptive 
eligibility or reimbursement levels, or doctors and providers reimbursement 
issues. 
 
JERRI STRASSER (Registered Nurse, University Medical Center): 
I am an R.N. of 27 years employed exclusively at UMC. I also represent the 
nurses there as Service Employees International Union chief nursing steward 
and a union member myself. I am here to speak in support of S.B. 24. As chief 
steward of the nurses, I get around the hospital a lot, and as a bedside nurse 
I know that the problems of languishing in the hospital long after they are ready 
to leave are many for the patients and the staff. 
 
The acute phase of the stay varies in length from patient to patient based on 
diagnosis and severity of illness. The acute phase is appropriate to be treated in 
our setting; however, the chronic part of their stay greatly changes the 
dynamics and places further burdens on the system. Exposure to multiple 
drug-resistant organisms in the acute-care setting, or contracting 
a hospital-acquired infection poses a real threat to the patient and the system. 
To the patient, it can be devastating in terms of their health. To the system, 
isolation and costly drugs become necessary. It requires more staff to 
accommodate cohorting like patients and costly new-generation drugs to 
combat infection. New acute phases, or moving in and out of the care 
continuum, also costs more money. It is really not the goal of the hospital, not 
the goal of the patient and not the goal of the nurses as well.  
 
Nevada’s nursing ratios are the last, or next to last, in the nation, depending on 
what day you are talking about. Taking care of chronic patients in an acute 
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setting, as UMC is, takes nurses away from patients who need immediate and 
acute care. At time of high census, they actually keep others from the beds and 
the staff that they need to take care of them. With an average stay of 89 days, 
human costs are incalculable. The patient is not in an environment that allows 
them to be social or to function at their highest level of capability. In an 
appropriate care setting, they would have a schedule and programs to meet 
their needs based on what their capabilities could be. There is nothing for them 
to do in the hospital. I know this, as I was a patient for five days, the average 
length of stay in the hospital last year, and could not wait to get out. I could 
only watch so much TV or look at four walls for so long. This is a quality-of-life 
issue for these patients; they do need to be appropriately placed. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
The one issue I see time and again is the lack of facilities in which to admit 
them. I know that in Las Vegas the chronic patients come and go. Do we know 
how many are out there? Is someone from that industry coming to talk about 
what we have in the private setting? I know one of the issues that we were 
trying to take care of in Clark County was the kids that are picked up and taken 
away from parents, children with disabilities and in severe condition. They are in 
Child Haven. We keep them there and we have no services there for them, just 
somebody watching them most of the time. This is heart-wrenching when you 
go there and see that. Until we find a place, we have nobody that will take care 
of anybody who is under 12, and that has not been addressed. That is a huge 
concern that I find. I think there is one clinic that we are talking to, I think in the 
southwest area, and it is actually looking at trying to help us take care of the 
kids that are 12 and under. I have not heard anybody address the children’s 
issue at all, and that is huge. 
 
I agree with the comments of my colleague. I am nervous about the stimulus 
package, what might or might not be in that, and then what our share is going 
to be. Is this the county’s responsibility or is it all the State’s, or can there be 
a combination. I am just asking a question that I think we need to look at, if 
there can be a joint venture here, because it would benefit them as well if we 
could do something.  
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
I hope that some of the concerns of the Committee can be addressed as you 
share your insight about what this can mean. One of the concerns is the 
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stimulus package. Mr. Willden and I had talked earlier today about some other 
components that might be rolling out as well.  
 
MR. WILLDEN: 
Mr. Gilliland will actually give the formal comments, but I will answer a couple 
of questions. Before I put the stimulus package into context, I should back up a 
little bit. I think the Committee should understand the reason we are here with 
this whole presumptive eligibility, or as we call it, the “210 Option,” is largely 
because the federal government, the Social Security Administration (SSA), 
frankly is not doing their job. The federal government is supposed to take 
applications for SSI and process them timely. Because they do not process them 
timely, that creates a burden on local and state health-care systems. How you 
get eligible for Medicaid when you are in the hospital, or a long-term care 
facility, is one of two ways: approved to be eligible for SSI with the state sitting 
and waiting for SSI, or, they are in an institution for longer than 30 days and 
meet what we call “state institutional criteria.” We need to talk to the UMC 
representatives about those two processes and make sure we are all on the 
same song sheet. We are talking specifically today about SSI.  
 
Specifically, to the stimulus package, the House of Representatives Resolution 
(H.R.) 1, there was an appropriation to be made to the SSA, $500 million, to 
speed up the social security and disability adjudication process. If that money 
does come, and if it does in fact speed up the disability adjudication process, 
then it may be a moot point if SSA would process things more timely. 
 
From the information I have last read, the average time to get an SSI case 
approved is around ten months. I have seen some go a couple of years. The 
whole idea is that people do not like to go without a pay source for ten months 
or two years, or any length of time. We would obviously like to accelerate that 
process.  
 
This bill is good public policy, but good public policy at the state level is required 
because the federal government is not doing its job.  
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
Has the state, your agency or the Governor sent letters to them?  
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MR. WILLDEN: 
Since last October, we have been in daily contact with various organizations, 
whether it is our elected federal officials, various national associations we 
belong to and the federal government itself. The Governor, Mr. Duarte and 
I have written letters. We are advocating for the State’s position in a number of 
areas and even in the last few weeks the contacts have been more than daily, 
they have almost been hourly. The e-mails have just been overwhelming. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
What is the response, since October? 
 
MR. WILLDEN: 
There is progress being made. Obviously, the U.S. House of Representatives 
passed the bill and the Senate has one out. They are going to conference to 
figure it out, and I think it will be good for the State. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
How does that affect now what you want us to do? Is this a waiting game? 
 
MR. WILLDEN: 
On this particular bill, there are a couple of things we will talk about as 
Mr. Gilliland proceeds. It does have a fiscal note. It is good public policy to get 
people determined as quickly as possible for SSI because it gets them on 
Medicaid and creates a pay source for their health care. There is a substantial 
fiscal note to it that we will talk about, either here or at the money committee. 
There has always been a substantial fiscal note. The question is how you 
address this substantial fiscal note. You can count on it to come from the 
stimulus bill in the sense that the stimulus bill will fund the SSA and they will do 
their job in a timely manner. That is one option. The stimulus bill may provide 
relief to Medicaid, and that may free up some general funds that could be 
redirected to support this policy as option two. A third option is that we do not 
fund it at all and we keep on doing what we are doing. 
 
The fiscal note largely is around three issues. We have to hire our own staff to 
make disability adjudications. If the federal government does not do it in 
a timely manner, we have to hire staff to do it. Secondly, there is a cash-flow 
issue and we have talked about that a lot. The federal government will make 
a decision, but they are not going to make it for 10, 12 or 15 months down the 
road. If we make it more timely, then we put more money out the door in 
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a more timely manner if it is a cash-flow issue. We are going to put it out 
eventually down the road, but we are going to put it out earlier. Third, we will 
make some decisions that if we presumptively believe someone is disabled and 
the federal government says, “no, they are not,” they do not make us pay that 
back. That is money that we would not have spent in the existing system and 
environment that we would start spending in the new environment. 
 
MR. GILLILAND: 
I have furnished a copy of my written text to the Committee, pertaining to 
S.B. 24 (Exhibit G). 
 
I would also like to go back to the fiscal aspect from the Division of Welfare and 
Supportive Services perspective. It is estimated that in the first year there would 
be a cost to the State of approximately $200,000 followed by $700,000 per 
year from that point forward. This would be primarily required for systems 
changes as well as addition of staff to maintain that preliminary eligibility 
process.  
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
Do we have any accounting on an average of ten months to make that 
determination? Do we have information or tracking that indicates how many of 
those people in the ten-month process historically qualify, so we know the 
correlation now? 
 
MR. DUARTE: 
In the development of the fiscal note, staff had done a number of interviews 
with the Bureau of Disability Adjudication, the Department of Employment, 
Training and Rehabilitation that performs, with the Social Security 
Administration, to determine that about 78 percent of the applicants, about 
2,000 or more, that come in for SSI determination ultimately are determined 
eligible. This is over whatever period of time that it takes for them to get the 
initial determination and sometimes their appeals adjudicated as well.  
 
The terms that Mr. Gilliland was using with respect to preliminary determination 
versus presumptive is important. It has to do with terms of art in federal law. 
Presumptive eligibility is a specific term in federal law that deals with presuming 
a pregnant woman or child eligible for Medicaid. There are specific aspects of 
federal regulation and law that deal with presumptive eligibility. The specific 
term of preliminary determination for SSI is an important distinction from that 
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group, because we are talking about the people with disabilities, and it is 
generally termed preliminary determination.  
 
Secondly, hospitals are not the only beneficiaries of a quicker SSI determination 
process. The majority of these cases are individuals who live in the community, 
who could benefit tremendously from receiving services in the community and 
not have to resort to a hospitalization in order to receive care. I think it is 
important to realize the hospitals are one affected party but there are many, 
many others who, for lack of a pay source, would like to take care of these 
patients. There are others who actually take care of these patients, and a lot of 
them are state agencies. One in point would be the Division of Mental Health 
and Developmental Services (MHDS). We know that a prompt SSI determination 
could result in improved cash flow for that agency as well, so we think there 
may be some offsets that we can calculate. We are going to be working with 
the Department, the director’s office, and MHDS on determining some of that.  
 
I want to make sure that folks realize that while the hospitals are an important 
stakeholder there are many other agencies and providers in the community that 
benefit from a prompt turnaround in SSI determinations. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
Would it not be more prudent for us to wait to see what comes out of the 
stimulus package before we proceed, or plot a parallel course?  
 
MR. WILLDEN: 
I do not know what term to use, but I clearly think it is important to see what 
the stimulus bill is going to do; specifically, whether or not they will marshal 
additional resources at the federal level. Again, if that happens and that works, 
I am not sure why the State would want to spend dollars to duplicate what the 
federal government will put in place over the next year. Quite frankly, I do not 
know what is going to happen and I keep hearing it will be done by the end of 
the week, but I am not sure “which” week. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
The reality of it is that we are in the midst of a budget crisis and you have had 
tremendous cutbacks within your department as so many agencies have. 
Looking at this fiscal note, over the biennium this is going to cost the State 
$11  million, but initially to get it started we are looking at closer to $55 million. 
The State does not have it. Is this an effort in futility? Our hands are tied. 
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MR. WILLDEN: 
This is great policy decision but funding it is the difficult part. 
 
ROBERT HADFIELD (Nevada Association of Counties): 
Obviously, this is a difficult topic but we believe an underlying principle of our 
system, both state and local, should be to place people in the most appropriate 
care and in the most expeditious and cautious manner. We also have 
a responsibility to maintain what we believe is the fragile nature of our hospital 
resources throughout the State that have already suffered, as the State has, 
from the loss of their own revenue, and loss of revenue taken from them in the 
interim special session. I wish I could tell you that this discussion should not 
take place because we do not have any money, but you would not have S.B. 4 
if you took that position; it would not be here today.  
 
Our problem is, quite simply, we need to have these issues, no matter how hard 
they are economically, to be at the forefront of the public policy and fiscal 
debate that is going on in this building as we speak. They are difficult issues. 
The State is doing whatever it can. The federal government, I agree, has 
balanced its budget or they have argued and told the American public they have 
cut health-care costs, but the truth of the matter is they have transferred the 
cost to health-care providers, state government and local government 
throughout the country.  
 
We believe that we have an obligation on behalf of our constituency to at least 
keep in the forefront issues so that when that magic bullet comes, when 
somebody finally says, “We have to accept responsibility and some front-end 
costs because in the long run it is in the best interest of the State of Nevada 
and all the residents.” This is not a criticism of the State. This is a problem we 
all face. It is a difficult issue, but if we do not bring this issue up, session after 
session, and new Legislators look to the legislative record as to, “Why is this 
important,” it will be dealt with the same way it has been dealt with for the 
30 years that I have been appearing in every legislative session since 1979.  
 
I am not being argumentative. Sooner or later we all have to figure out 
something that I do believe belongs in that issue of priorities that the Senators 
spoke of. If we do not talk about it, it does not even get onto a priority list. It 
may not make the final cut, but it might be the next one down so the next 
session of the Legislature, or a new Governor, might put it first. We have a 
mess on our hands, we got a crummy budget to deal with, we got problems 
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with it, everybody has problems with it. There is no money, but these people 
still need compassionate, effective and efficient health care. We have to 
continue the dialogue. There may not be a solution, but if we do not talk about 
the problem nobody will ever look for a solution. 
 
MS. MCMULLEN: 
We are in support of S.B. 24 on a number of important points that have already 
been made, but other than indicated, when these individuals present themselves 
for medical care in our State they sometimes have to wait an extensive period 
of time, up to a year or more, for determination of eligibility from Medicaid. This 
presumptive eligibility requirement would allow them to get quicker and better 
health care. 
 
PAM BECKER (Director of Community Collaboration, Children’s Cabinet of Reno): 
I am neutral on this bill, I do not know a lot about the bill, but I do know about 
social security. We are currently working with the homeless population and a lot 
of people believe that the homeless population is eligible for social security. 
Even the federal government believes that. We were spending a lot of time 
filling out applications only to have them rejected. We go back in and fill them 
out. It is the length of time it takes to get the person through the system. The 
government has come out with a program called SSI/SSDI Outreach, Access 
and Recovery. They have trained us to make sure we have all of the information 
that is required to make that person almost automatically eligible for social 
security, because we have done all the work. I would say that part of the 
problem is that we are not helping the client fill out the form well enough to get 
them through the system in a timely manner. Because they are focusing on the 
homeless, we have relationships with the SSA in the Reno area. I know they 
have offered it in the Clark County area, but we are actually seeing the results 
of people being thrown back because of not filling out the right form or not 
enough information being collected, to knowing what they need so that when 
the person comes in, it is months or maybe even less that they can get eligible. 
If that is the issue, we need to work smarter. If we are out there helping people 
and we can learn the tricks of the trade to learn the system better, does that 
not help everybody? Then we are not spinning our wheels. 
 
I would say to you, I am happy to get you that information. There are people in 
our State that are trained to provide this training. For an agency like mine, we 
may not have the opportunity to help that many people, so I might never be 
able to be really good at filling out the application, but I will know enough, 
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having taken the training, to be able to fill out the application and then I can go 
to the coworkers or co-associates, in this process, to review my application. If 
the hospitals have not had this training, or availed themselves of it, they are 
going to be doing this a lot, and get really good at what they need. What is the 
packet going to look like when it goes to the federal government and SSI people 
so that they do not get rejected? Sometimes it is a piece of paperwork from one 
of the doctors who saw a person five years ago, but they still need that piece of 
paper because it is really important, or the doctor did not write down on the 
form the right wording for that person’s job.  
 
Sometimes you have people presume that they are going to be eligible. We, as 
workers helping the public receive these services, need to know how to do it. If 
we leave it up to the individual, they are never going to know the system. 
I have been working with Charles Duarte in Medicaid, and that is all I do 
sometimes, and I still do not know enough. How am I ever going to expect 
a family to know this stuff? But we can get it. The government is willing to help 
us, they are sending people out there, technical assistance is available to us, let 
us avail ourselves here. 
 
JAMES WADHAMS (Nevada Hospital Association): 
I am not going to repeat anything you have heard except to say that the Nevada 
Hospital Association supports this as we have for as many legislative sessions 
as I can recall. I think, in answer partially to Senator Washington’s point, this is 
the policy committee. I think this is clearly the right policy, whether it ultimately 
gets funded through the federal stimulus package or State monies that may be 
raised is a question for another committee. This is the right policy. This is about 
access to care, and we encourage you to at least endorse the policy. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
I support the policy, I do not have a problem with that. I do not mind voting for 
the bill. Unlike Mr. Hadfield, I have not been here 30 years, but I have been here 
long enough to see this bill come and go. I have never questioned the policy, 
it is just always trying to get the funding for it. I am happy to submit to 
Senate Finance and let them deal with it and find the funding on it, but I would 
like to see it funded so that we will not have to deal with this issue any longer. 
If you want to talk about a real legacy, this one would really be a legacy, but 
when reality sets in, we do not have any money.  
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JAMES WADHAMS: 
I was certainly not suggesting any criticism whatsoever. As a former chair of 
this Committee, it is a policy question, and as you have heard some testimony, 
this is ultimately about access to care for people who have no other means of 
getting to this care. We encourage that opportunity. Hopefully the money will 
come from someplace, somehow, but again, I think in endorsement of the 
policy, it is time that a committee do that. I think there is strong support for at 
least the policy question and we have got to be optimistic and look at the 
possibilities.  
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
This is not directed to Mr. Wadhams but to everybody. It does not do us any 
heartfelt thanks to look at all these bills and all the issues we have in the State, 
the ultimate choices, and it is frustrating because we know there are some good 
things and, if the money was there, we could do that. I cannot in good 
conscience send a bill out saying that I support it, knowing what the fiscal note 
is on it. I have sat in finance committees too long, because that is always the 
end game for me, whether or not we can afford it. That is what I do at home; 
I may want something, and I may need something, but if I cannot afford it, 
I cannot get it. These are all great concepts, and I agree with a lot being 
discussed, but to come and tell us that we have to separate those two, we 
cannot do that. We cannot separate the two, they go together. You can tell me 
that all day long, and I will disagree with you; they are not separate. All those 
issues are together and we have to look at them together because we have, in 
my 13 years, one of the worst sessions that has ever been put before us. I look 
at what Mike Willden has done and it is heartbreaking, it is tough, but we have 
to make those decisions. I see Karen Taycher here from Clark County, I know 
about her parents, the families to which she provides services. They are clients.  
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
For the record, Julianna Ormbsy, Nevada Women’s Lobby, would like to note 
the organization’s support for S.B. 24 (Exhibit H). We will close the hearing on 
S.B. 24 and open the hearing on S.B. 79. 
 
SENATE BILL 79: Revises provisions governing various commissions, boards 

and committees relating to health. (BDR 38-327) 
 
 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Senate/HR/SHR107H.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/SB/SB79.pdf�


Senate Committee on Health and Education 
February 11, 2009 
Page 27 
 
MARY LIVERATTI (Deputy Director, Department of Health and Human Services): 
As you know, in the last year we have really had to look at the way we do 
business. One of the areas that we looked at was to try to be more efficient in 
all of our boards and commissions. The DHHS has 55 boards, commissions and 
committees that we work with. We looked at this as an agency bill to 
streamline our boards and commissions, and, where possible, consolidate them 
to improve our coordination and also to enhance communication among boards. 
 
There are three main areas in this bill: disability services, health boards, and the 
mental health commission. The bill creates a new commission on services for 
persons with disabilities. Currently, our Office of Disability Services has eight 
boards. They are a small office of only 20 people, and they manage those 
8 boards in addition to all the other work they have to do. We are proposing in 
this bill that three of our current boards would become subcommittees under 
this new commission. We would have a subcommittee on communication 
services for persons who are deaf or hard of hearing, and persons with speech 
disabilities.  
 
We would have a subcommittee on personal assistance for persons with severe 
functional disabilities, and we would have a subcommittee on traumatic brain 
injuries. We would also like to incorporate our strategic plan for persons with 
disabilities under this commission. We do have an executive-order-appointed 
board called Strategic Plan Accountability Committee which in the past was 
SPAC committee. We would like to see that this SPAC committee be 
transferred into our new commission, that they would continue to oversee the 
strategic plan for Disability Services. 
 
We are also proposing to combine our Aging Services Division along with 
our office of Disability Services into a new Division of Aging and Disability 
Services. We feel that this commission would be important to make sure that 
Disability Services continues to have enough attention paid to it. This 
commission mirrors our Nevada Commission on Aging, which is already 
currently in statute.  
 
The second major part of our bill is changing the appointment process for a 
number of our health committees. Currently, a number of our boards under the 
Health Division are appointed by the Governor. We would propose they be 
appointed by the State Board of Health. To be appointed by the Governor is 
quite a lengthy process. One has to go on the Website and do a six-page 
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application, send it in, have that application notarized, get approval and have 
the oath of office administered and notarized again. We would like to streamline 
that process by just having the State Board of Health make some of these 
appointments. We also feel that this will encourage the State Board of Health to 
improve communication with these many different boards, because the 
information will be flowing through that Board of Health. The committees we 
are proposing would be appointed by the State Board of Health, the Advisory 
Committee to the Office of Minority Health; the Advisory Board on Maternal and 
Child Health and the Committee on Emergency Medical Services.  
 
We are also proposing to repeal the Task Force on Prostate Cancer and the Task 
Force on Cervical Cancer because we now have a Nevada Cancer Council under 
our Health Division, and felt this was a duplication of boards. 
 
The third area that we would like to make some changes is the responsibilities 
of the Commission on Mental Health and Developmental Services (Commission). 
We currently have three Consortia for Children’s Mental Health Services and 
they submit their recommendations directly to our department. We are 
proposing in this bill that they will submit their recommended plan for provision 
of those services to the Commission, again, trying to eliminate some of the 
fragmentation that we have currently. The bill would also repeal the Committee 
on Co-Occurring Disorders (COD). We think this is an area that should be 
handled by the Commission. Co-occurring disorders are already being addressed 
in some ways by that Commission, but we feel that it should put more of an 
emphasis under that Commission. They already deal with mental health issues 
and substance abuse issues, because both of those areas are under our Mental 
Health Division. We feel this is just a natural fit to integrate that work on the co-
occurring disorders into that Commission.  
 
We did meet with the COD. Some people were supportive and some people 
were not, and you will probably hear from them today. We proposed 
amendments (Exhibit I and Exhibit J) to make sure that the Commission would 
address co-occurring disorders. We are proposing that we add specifically 
co-occurring disorders and the list of their responsibilities. We also are proposing 
to add a paragraph that they can appoint subcommittees to deal with topics, 
one of which would be co-occurring disorders. 
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There are some other groups that also have some amendments. When I met 
with the Emergency Services Committee, they did feel that in their statutes, 
although we were not proposing anything more than just having the Board of 
Health appoint the members, they have some language proposed on the way 
their committee works that nobody can serve more than two consecutive terms. 
They wanted to make it clear that if somebody served two terms but went off 
that committee, at a later time they could be reappointed to the committee. 
I did run it by our deputy attorney general who said that he felt they could 
probably already do it now but did not know if it was really necessary to put 
that in the statute.  
 
They also wanted it written that if somebody has to terminate their term before 
the term actually runs out, they would be appointed in the same manner as the 
initial appointment was made. Those were two things that were suggested as 
amendments. We are neutral and we do not have a position one way or the 
other. 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
I know there has been a lot of input and a lot of feelings about this 
transformation of the way we do business, and I appreciate the explanation 
here. I am looking at those who have been very patient to come forward in 
support or against this measure. What has worked for me as an individual 
Legislator now in my thirteenth year of service, sometimes it takes people 
sitting at the table and talking through some of their concerns and sharing their 
ideas in a form of coming to the table in this fashion, to hammer out some of 
the differences to make even stronger legislation.  
 
I would suggest to Mr. Willden, as well, a work group to address the concerns. 
There are people who have strong feelings about their involvement on the 
various boards and commissions. I will be more than happy to serve on that 
work group representing our Committee, and any members who would like to 
participate certainly are welcome to do so.  
 
To expedite, I invite the parties to come together to have that conversation so 
we can respond to some of their concerns. If the Committee is okay with that, 
we will bring this bill back when you have some additional language that might 
address some of those concerns. Does that work for you as well?  A little extra 
time to have our voices heard, and for those in southern Nevada, they are also 
welcome to participate. I am not speaking for them; I am inviting them to 
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participate in the process because we do have some people from southern 
Nevada who are interested in this. Please include me, and anyone else on the 
Committee in the dialogue we need to have to ensure that we are moving 
forward in a way that is most amenable to everybody concerned, to make the 
transitions that we need to make and to create efficiencies we need to address. 
 
ROSETTA JOHNSON, M.P.A. (Chairperson, Committee on Co-Occurring Disorders): 
I will read from my written text furnished to the Committee (Exhibit K). 
 
RICHARD BALDO, PH.D., (Committee on Co-Occurring Disorders; Nevada State 

Psychological Association): 
I think the most important thing here, especially in this time where there is such 
a desperate financial situation, is to understand the cost of inadequately dealing 
with this problem. I am on call at the emergency room (ER) at a local hospital to 
see these people. I do evaluations for commitment. It is hard to place them, 
they do not stick, and they are called “frequent fliers” by the ER staff. It is very 
expensive. We do not have any residential beds for these people; there is no 
way to hold onto them, to keep them in treatment. A lot of these people are 
very difficult, they do not have any support system at home, and we have to 
hold on to them long enough to make a difference in their lives so they can 
begin to provide some of their own structure. We do not have a way to do that 
right now, except in jail. That is where many of them end up and have some 
kind of respite care, but not really adequate treatment, and end up back on the 
streets. I also have written testimony (Exhibit L) to present to the Committee. 
 
LARRY ASHLEY, ED.S., (Addictions Specialist, Committee on Co-Occurring 

Disorders; University of Nevada, Las Vegas): 
I represent higher education, the University of Nevada, Las Vegas, on the 
Committee, and am vehemently opposed to section 18 as I feel that our work 
will be not noticed in the large pool of all these committees. There is such 
uniqueness with co-occurring disorders that it warrants special attention. Our 
mandate was not just the mental health and substance abuse systems but also 
the correction system. You can go to any Department of Corrections Institution 
in this State and I bet you half or more have a co-occurring-disorders issue. 
 
Our mandate was to address this issue and my personal goal was to have the 
State adopt an integrated model of treating co-occurring disorders and at the 
same time as mental health and substance abuse. If we do not have a voice to 
do this, it will be the proverbial herding cats; everybody has territory. There 
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must be some system of coordinating treatment before the mental health and 
addiction folks and in the correctional system. 
 
I do not know who they were talking to in DHHS, but this caught me off guard. 
I never had a clue, as a member of the COD, that there was even a plan, to 
vaporize S.B. No. 2 of the 23rd Special Session, the Committee on Co-
Occurring Disorders. As a courtesy, I would have expected the folks on the 
Commission would have known instead of getting a bill draft which basically 
says, “Oh, by the way, you will not be in existence anymore.” 
 
I certainly would like to be a member of this task force because my day job is 
basically training dual-diagnosis clinicians. Every time I go into the community to 
see the treatment program, they want to know where the people are who can 
treat co-occurring disorders because they do not train them anymore—they 
either go to mental health or addictions, and true professionals know you 
cannot tell which shop they should be in anyway, because the symptoms are 
the same initially. We are in a crisis. 
 
My last comment is “We pay now, or we pay later.” We are going to pay by 
having these folks that have co-occurring disorders in the criminal justice 
system and whatever, because they are going to flood the system more than 
they are now, and overwhelm it. Pay now or later. 
 
LESLEY DICKSON, M.D., (Committee on Co-Occurring Disorders; President, Nevada 

Psychiatric Association): 
Two years ago when this bill was going through regular session, we wrote 
several others in favor of the Committee on Co-Occurring Disorders. It did not 
actually make it out and then it got revised, it made it in the special session and 
we were delighted. We were very supportive of it at the time, and we made 
all the effort we could to get me on the COD because I was very much 
supportive. I am an addiction psychiatrist, I spend most of my clinical time now 
working in addiction clinics, and I think this is extremely important. As I have 
said, the Nevada Psychiatric Association has supported this before and they 
continue to support it. I agree with Dr. Ashley that to basically “dump” us 
as nonessential is really quite unfair to our accomplishing what we could 
continue to accomplish.  
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CHAIR WIENER: 
We will go forward as a work group. Please contact Mr. Willden and 
Ms. Liveratti to ensure that you can participate in the process. It will be an 
expedited work group process; however, the voices that need to be at the table 
will be included. 
 
MS. BECKER: 
I am representing the Washoe County Children’s Mental Health Consortium and 
am also a member of the Nevada Children’s Behavioral Health Consortium. The 
Washoe County Consortium is one of three mandated by Chapter 433B of 
Nevada Revised Statutes to be in existence. We have to have the Commission 
on Mental Health and Developmental Services because we receive the federal 
dollars. In the past, the Commission has not been as effective as we would like 
it for those of us who have been dealing with mental health, or any aspect of it. 
I would say that by becoming a piece of this, we believe we could change the 
dynamics of that board and all the different energy to it. We will not allow our 
issues not to be heard.  
 
The benefit I see now being under the Commission is that the Commission has 
the ability to propose bill drafts. None of us do. If we really want to move our 
agenda ahead, we have to get somebody to whom we say, “You take the flag, 
you make it out there and you present the bills,” because we have to move 
mental health. I see it as an opportunity to go, “Wow, maybe this is what we 
want.” As consortiums have been evolving, because we have been in existence 
since 1999 and started building up in 2000, we have had the impetus we need 
to move forward, but we have not really had a home; it just says, “We do this 
stuff.” Nobody is obligated to do anything once we give them this information, 
but we are proposing that we become a subcommittee of the Commission, our 
statewide behavioral health consortium, who we all see as the next level up 
from the local consortium. This becomes our forum to get the bills passed, to 
get some real “teeth” to what we are trying to do.  
 
I would say to you that are struggling with this in COD. If you had the only 
subcommittee, it has to be part of their agenda, they cannot ignore it. It gives 
us an opportunity we do not have. That Board was created last Session and is 
ready to sunset anyway. It can be sunsetted at any time. When you have 
a commission, it is mandated federally because you have taken the federal 
dollars. They just cannot get rid of it. The only Board that is created by the 
Senate or Assembly as a whole can be sunsetted. We have seen this happen, 
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they do not exist anymore. So, where do we go? Maybe this is an opportunity 
as opposed to being something that is dire and we will not be heard.  
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
We have been presented with a letter from Charles Price, M.D., Legislative 
Representative, Nevada Psychiatric Association, in opposition to the portion of 
section 18 of S.B. 79 which repeals the provisions creating and governing the 
Committee on Co-Occurring Disorders (Exhibit M). 
 
With no other business coming before the Senate Committee on Health and 
Education, the meeting is adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 
 
 

  
Maureen Duarte, 
Committee Secretary 

 
APPROVED BY: 
 
 
  
Senator Valerie Wiener, Chair 
 
DATE:  
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